University of Shanghai

Shanghai (China)

The University of Shanghai was established in 1906 as Shanghai Baptist College, supported by
Northern and Southern Baptists of America. Its campus, along the Whangpoo River about six
miles east of the center of Shanghai, was ready for occupation in 1909 with the completion of
the main administrative and classroom building, Yates Hall. By 1918 the University had added
more than twenty acres of land to its campus and five new buildings. It was was a pioneer in
coeducation in China, opening its doors to women in 1920.

The Yangtszepoo Social Center, the first institution of its kind in China, was established in
1913. It was located three miles from the University in the center of the mill district of
Shanghai. Its program of social, educational, recreational, and religious activities for the
people of that area served more than a thousand people per day.

The Sino-Japanese War brought major disruption to the University of Shanghai. The campus
lay between the sea and the city, directly in line of the Japanese invasion of August 1937.
Students and faculty took refuge in the basement of the science building during the initial
attack, then made their way to the University's Downtown School of Commerce, where
classes continued despite daily bombing of the city. Throughout the course of the war, the
University occupied several buildings within Shanghai's International Settlement and shared
the library and laboratory facilities of St. John's University. On April 8, 1938, University
president Herman C. E. Liu was assassinated by the Japanese. For the duration of the war the
University operated two programs, the Shanghai Institute in Shanghai, and the School of
Commerce in Chungking.

Much rehabilitation of the University of Shanghai campus was required before it could be
occupied again in April 1946, eight and a half years after its evacuation. Several new buildings
were constructed during the next two years, including a women's dormitory. The University's
newspaper, the Shanghai Spectator, for February 8, 1949 recounts the reaction of students
moving into the new dormitory space:

The girls' dormitory is a friendship tree which our American friends have planted on our
campus - because it was they who gave the money which enabled our University,
amidst its economic stringency to erect the girls' dream house, the great building,
greater than any other dormitory on this campus. At the beginning of this term, the
lucky junior and senior girls moved into this new building....

One of the senior girls wrote:

I never realized how beautiful the girls' new dormitory is until | came back late this
evening from the birthday party of Mr. and Mrs. H. T. Wei, the Chinese secretary of the
President. Viewing the new building in the moonlight, | beheld its magnificence,
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sparkling and cozy. Some of the windows even have draperies and curtains. It looks
more like a fine apartment home than a dormitory!
The Shanghai Spectator also records the post-war optimism of the student body, which was
organizing a tree-planting movement on the campus:

How inviting, graceful, and majestic will our campus look when all the trees we have
planted, and will plant, grow up to some 30 or 40 feet high, with their dense foliage
billowing in the wind, filling the air with sweet scent and lovely music. And how
thankful will the future strolling lovers be, if along the various pathways, criss-

crossing the campus, trees on opposite sides embrace each other, forming a canopy
that will hide them from the peeping sun..."

This dream did not come to fruition for the University of Shanghai. Operations continued as
normally as possible for the University following the Communist occupation of Shanghai in
May 1949, but by 1952 the campus was taken over by the People's Government and the era
of Christian higher education in Shanghai had passed.



